



DATED 1<sup>ST</sup> APRIL 2020

# **COLLABORATION AGREEMENT**

# **AGE OF OPPORTUNITY**

between

SELNET LIMITED

and

**DELIVERY PARTNERS** 



# **CONTENTS**

# **C**LAUSE

1.	Interpretation	4
2.	Commencement and duration	7
3.	Collaboration and co-operation	8
4.	Existing arrangements	8
5.	Adherence Agreements	8
6.	Customers	9
7.	Information flow and Project management	9
8.	Recovery of Costs	10
9.	Confidentiality	14
10.	Announcements	17
11.	Data protection	17
12.	Intellectual property	17
13.	Employees and non-solicitation	18
14.	Anti-bribery	18
15.	Warranties	19
16.	Indemnity	19
17.	Insurance	21
18.	Limitation and exclusion of liability	21
19.	Termination or Alteration of Adherence Agreement	22
20.	Termination of entire agreement	24
21.	Consequences of termination	24
22.	Force majeure	25
23.	Assignment and other dealings	26
24.	Variation	26
25.	Notices	26
26.	Severance	27
27.	No partnership or agency	27
28.	Rights and remedies	28
29.	Waiver	28
30.	Language	28
31.	Counterparts	28
32.	Third Party rights	28
33.	Further assurance	29
34.	Costs	29
35.	Entire agreement	29
36.	Mediation	29
37.	Governing law	29
38	Turisdiction	30

# Schedule 1

Delivery Partners & Partner Involvement Summary

#### Schedule 2

Strategic Management Board

# Schedule 3

Adherence Agreement

# Schedule 4

Data Protection Protocol

# Schedule 5

Transfers of Undertakings

# Schedule 6

Performance Improvement Plan

#### Annexures

1. The Bid Details

2020

#### **PARTIES**

- (1) SELNET Limited incorporated and registered in England and Wales with company number 05671228 whose registered office is at Brentwood House, 15 Victoria Road, Fulwood, Preston, PR2 8PS. (Selnet).
- (2) The DELIVERY PARTNERS whose details are set out in Schedule 1 (Delivery Partners & Partner Involvement Summary).

#### BACKGROUND

- (A) Selnet has applied in the form of the Bid (as defined below) for Funding (as defined below) in relation to the Project (as defined below) and is solely responsible as the lead partner to deliver the Project in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Funding.
- (B) The parties to this agreement wish to establish a framework to govern their respective rights and obligations in relation to the Project in respect of which they wish to cooperate.
- (C) This agreement sets out the terms and conditions upon which the parties have agreed that the Project will take place.

#### AGREED TERMS

#### 1. INTERPRETATION

1.1 The definitions and rules of interpretation in this clause apply in this agreement.

Adherence Agreement: an agreement for each Party in the form set out in Schedule 3 specifying the contribution the Party will make and the associated funding allocated to the costs of that contribution.

Bid: The Building Better Opportunities Stage Two Bid submitted by the parties to The Big Lottery Fund (now National Lottery Community Fund) in relation to the Project as annexed to this agreement as Annexure 1.

**Funding:** the funding awarded by the Fund in relation to the Project.

Business Day: a day other than a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday in England.

**Charges:** the charges payable by a Party to the other in relation to Inputs to the Project (if any), as set out in each case in an Adherence Agreement.

**Commencement Date:** has the meaning set out in clause 2.1.

Control: the beneficial ownership of more than 50% of the issued share capital of a company or the legal power to direct or cause the direction of the general management of

the company, and **controls**, **controlled** and the expression **change of control** shall be construed accordingly.

**Delivery Partner:** one of the Delivery Partners.

ESF: European Social Fund

**Fund:** the National Lottery Community Fund (formerly the Big Lottery Fund), a non-departmental public body of the United Kingdom government.

**Group:** in relation to a company, that company, any subsidiary or holding company from time to time of that company, and any subsidiary from time to time of a holding company of that company.

**Group Company:** in relation to a company, any member of its Group.

**Holding Company:** has the meaning given in clause 1.7.

**Input:** in relation to a Party, the services, resources, manpower or other tangibles or intangibles that such Party provides in accordance with this agreement in relation to the Project, as set out in the Bid and that Party's Adherence Agreement.

Intellectual Property Rights: patents, utility models, rights to inventions, copyright and neighbouring and related rights, trademarks and service marks, business names and domain names, rights in get-up and trade dress, goodwill and the right to sue for passing off or unfair competition, rights in designs, database rights, rights to use, and protect the confidentiality of, confidential information (including know-how and trade secrets), and all other intellectual property rights, in each case whether registered or unregistered and including all applications and rights to apply for and be granted, renewals or extensions of, and rights to claim priority from, such rights and all similar or equivalent rights or forms of protection which subsist or will subsist now or in the future in any part of the world.

**Parties:** Selnet and the Delivery Partners (and **Party** shall mean any one of them).

**Performance Improvement Plan:** a document in the form set out in Schedule 6 or such other form as the Strategic Management Board shall approve from time to time.

**Project:** the project agreed by the parties, in relation to which the parties will collaborate in accordance with this agreement, as further described in the Bid.

**Project Period:** subject to earlier termination in accordance with this agreement, the period from the start date to the end date for the Project, as set out in the Bid.

**Subsidiary:** has the meaning given in clause 1.7.

- 1.2 Clause, Schedule and paragraph headings shall not affect the interpretation of this agreement.
- 1.3 The Schedule forms part of this agreement and shall have effect as if set out in full in the body of this agreement. Any reference to this **agreement** includes the Schedules.

- 1.4 References to clauses and Schedules are to the clauses and Schedules of this agreement and references to paragraphs are to paragraphs of the Schedule.
- 1.5 A **person** includes a natural person, corporate or unincorporated body (whether or not having separate legal personality) and that person's personal representatives, successors and permitted assigns.
- 1.6 A reference to a **company** shall include any company, corporation or other body corporate, wherever and however incorporated or established.
- 1.7 A reference to a **holding company** or a **subsidiary** means a holding company or a subsidiary (as the case may be) as defined in section 1159 of the Companies Act 2006 and a company shall be treated, for the purposes only of the membership requirement contained in sections 1159(1)(b) and (c), as a member of another company even if its shares in that other company are registered in the name of (a) another person (or its nominee) by way of security or in connection with the taking of security, or (b) its nominee. In the case of a limited liability partnership which is a subsidiary of a company or another limited liability partnership, section 1159 of the Companies Act 2006 shall be amended so that: (a) references in sections 1159(1)(a) and (c) to voting rights are to the members' rights to vote on all or substantially all matters which are decided by a vote of the members of the limited liability partnership; and (b) the reference in section 1159(1)(b) to the right to appoint or remove a majority of its board of directors is to the right to appoint or remove members holding a majority of the voting rights.
- 1.8 Unless the context otherwise requires, words in the singular shall include the plural and in the plural shall include the singular.
- 1.9 Unless the context otherwise requires, a reference to one gender shall include a reference to the other genders.
- 1.10 A reference to any **Party** shall include that Party's personal representatives, successors and permitted assigns.
- 1.11 A reference to a statute or statutory provision is a reference to it as amended, extended or re-enacted from time to time.
- 1.12 A reference to a statute or statutory provision shall include all subordinate legislation made from time to time under that statute or statutory provision.
- 1.13 A reference to **writing** or **written** includes fax and e-mail.
- 1.14 Any obligation on a Party not to do something includes an obligation not to allow that thing to be done.

- 1.15 References to a document in **agreed form** are to that document in the form agreed by the parties and initialled by them or on their behalf for identification.
- 1.16 A reference to **this agreement** or to **any other agreement or document referred to in this agreement** is a reference to this agreement or such other agreement or document as varied or novated (in each case, other than in breach of the provisions of this agreement) from time to time.
- 1.17 Where any statement is qualified by the expression **so far as a Party is aware** or **to a Party's knowledge** (or any similar expression), that statement shall be deemed to include an additional statement that it has been made after due and careful enquiry.
- 1.18 Any words following the terms **including**, **include**, **in particular**, **for example** or any similar expression shall be construed as illustrative and shall not limit the sense of the words, description, definition, phrase or term preceding those terms.
- 1.19 Where there is a conflict between the Bid and any of:
  - (a) the terms and conditions of this agreement, or
  - (b) an Adherence Agreement

the provisions of the Bid shall prevail to the extent of the inconsistency.

- 1.20 Where there is a conflict between an Adherence Agreement and the general provisions of this agreement the provisions of the Adherence Agreement shall prevail to the extent of the inconsistency.
- 1.21 Where there is a conflict between this agreement or an Adherence Agreement and the Bid (which includes the provisions applicable to the Funding) the terms of the Bid shall prevail to the extent of the inconsistency.
- 1.22 Any reference to this agreement terminating shall, where the context requires, include a reference to this agreement terminating by expiry.

#### 2. COMMENCEMENT AND DURATION

- 2.1 This agreement shall commence on the date when it has been signed by all the Partners.
- 2.2 This agreement shall continue, unless terminated earlier in accordance with this agreement, until the end of the Project Period when it shall terminate automatically without notice save for those provisions expressly or by necessary implication intended to have effect after that date.

#### 3. COLLABORATION AND CO-OPERATION

- 3.1 The parties shall co-operate in relation to delivery of the Project in the manner set out in the Partner Involvement Summary at Schedule 1.
- 3.2 The Partners shall collaborate in relation to the matters set out in this agreement for the delivery, management, monitoring and funding of the Project.
- 3.3 Each Delivery Partner undertakes to Selnet and to the other Delivery Partners to perform the obligations set out in the Adherence Agreement relating to it as such Adherence Agreement may be varied during the Project Period in accordance with the terms of this agreement.
- 3.4 Without prejudice to the generality of the preceding sub-clauses:
  - (a) each Delivery Partner agrees to the terms of Schedule 5 and
  - (b) in the event of termination of this agreement (and/or an Adherence Agreement) in relation to a Delivery Partner the Delivery Partner shall during any notice period ensure continued provision of Services to beneficiaries of the Services by it and use all reasonable endeavours to collaborate with and any Future Delivery Partner (as defined in Schedule 5) to facilitate continued provision of Services to beneficiaries of the Services across the change of Delivery Partner.

#### 4. EXISTING ARRANGEMENTS

- 4.1 Nothing in this agreement shall restrict either Party's right to continue to conduct its business activities or arrangements that existed on the Commencement Date or that otherwise come into being outside the scope of this agreement.
- 4.2 However, as the Partners will be working together in relation to the Project where each Party may have access to information or Intellectual Property Rights of the others, each Party acknowledges that the other Partners will need to protect such information and Intellectual Property Rights in accordance with clause 9 and clause 12.

#### 5. ADHERENCE AGREEMENTS

- 5.1 Each Party shall in relation to the obligations allocated to it in an Adherence Agreement:
  - (a) perform such obligations, including by providing the Inputs in accordance with timeframes or milestones (if any) specified in the Adherence Agreement;
  - (b) use reasonable care and skill in performing such obligations;
  - (c) comply with all laws applicable to it;
  - (d) obtain and maintain consents, licences and permissions (statutory, regulatory, contractual or otherwise) that are necessary to enable it to comply with such obligations;

- (e) ensure that the Inputs it provides conform with descriptions and specifications (if any) set out in the applicable parts of the Bid and the Adherence Agreement; and
- (f) if on another Party's premises, comply with that Party's health and safety and site regulations made known to it.
- Each Party shall ensure that it uses employees or agents in performing its obligations under an Adherence Agreement who are suitably qualified and experienced.

#### 6. CUSTOMERS

- Each Party agrees that it has no right to bind the other Partners in contract or otherwise in relation to any clients of any Party, and it shall not represent that it has such right.
- Nothing in this agreement constitutes one Party a partner, employer, employee or agent of the other Party in relation to either Party's customers.
- 6.3 No Party may provide to any of its customers any information, or make any representation, relating to another Party's products or services, unless that information or representation is approved in writing by that Party for use in those circumstances.

#### 7. INFORMATION FLOW AND PROJECT MANAGEMENT

- 7.1 To enable the Partners to maximise the benefits of their collaboration, each Party shall:
  - (a) engage the others in planning discussions in relation to the Project from time to time where Inputs are required to be co-ordinated;
  - (b) keep the other Partners informed about its own progress in relation to the Project by reporting to Selnet in such form and at such frequency as Selnet may consider appropriate from time to time and collaborating with meetings of the Project Management Group and/or Strategic Management Board as may be required by Selnet from time to time in accordance with Schedule 2; and
  - (c) facilitate regular discussions between appropriate members of its personnel and those of the other Partners in relation to the Project, including in relation to:
    - (i) performance and issues of concern in relation to the Project;
    - (ii) new developments and resource requirements;
    - (iii) compliance with deadlines; and
    - (iv) such other matters as may be agreed between the parties from time to time.

#### 7.2 Each Party shall:

(a) supply to the other Partners information and assistance reasonably requested by them relating to the Project as is necessary to enable them to perform their own obligations in relation to the Project; and

(b) review documentation, including draft specifications or service descriptions or other technical documentation, for use when performing its obligations in relation to the Project (if any), as soon as reasonably practicable at the request of another Party, and notify it of any errors or incorrect assumptions made in any such documents so far as it is aware.

#### 8. RECOVERY OF COSTS

- 8.1 Except as provided for in clause 8.2, each Party shall:
  - (a) comply with the terms of this clause 8 in relation to payments from Selnet from the Funding;
  - (b) not be entitled to charge another Party for the provision of anything (including Inputs) it provides in connection with the Project and this agreement; and
  - (c) be otherwise responsible for its own costs incurred in connection with the Project and this agreement, including all Inputs it provides.
- 8.2 If an Adherence Agreement provides that a Party is responsible for paying another Party any Charges, such Charges shall be invoiced and paid for in accordance with the terms of that Adherence Agreement.

# 8.3 Payment of Grant

- (a) Selnet shall pay the Funding to each party as provided for in its Adherence Agreement in quarterly or monthly instalments in advance as provided for in the relevant Adherence Agreement (or otherwise as received from the Fund) subject to the necessary funds being available when payment falls due. Each Party agrees and accepts that payments of the Funding can only be made to the extent that Selnet has available funds.
- (b) No Funding shall be paid unless and until Selnet is satisfied that such payment will be used for proper expenditure in the delivery of the Project.
- (c) The amount of the allocated Funding shall not be increased in the event of any overspend by a Party in its delivery of the Project.
- (d) The Funding received by Selnet from the Fund shall be paid into a separate bank account in the name of Selnet which must be an ordinary business bank account.
- (e) Selnet shall not transfer any part of the Funding to bank accounts which are not ordinary business accounts within the clearing bank system.
- (f) Each Party shall promptly repay to Selnet any money incorrectly paid to it either as a result of an administrative error or otherwise. This includes (without limitation) situations where either an incorrect sum of money has been paid or where Funding monies have been paid in error before all conditions attaching to the Funding have been complied with.

#### 8.4 Use of Grant

- (a) The Funding shall be used by the Recipient for the delivery of the Project in accordance with the agreed budget set out in the Bid. For the avoidance of doubt, the amount of the Funding that a Party may spend on any item of expenditure shall not exceed the corresponding sum of money listed in its Adherence Agreement without the prior written agreement of Selnet after consultation with the Strategic Management Board.
- (b) Where a Party has obtained funding from a third party in relation to its delivery of the Project (including without limitation funding for associated administration and staffing costs), the amount of such funding shall be included in the Adherence Agreement for that Party together with a clear description of what that funding shall be used for.
- (c) No Party shall use the Funding to:
  - (i) make any payment to members of its Governing Body;
  - (ii) purchase buildings or land;
  - (iii) pay for any expenditure commitments of the Party entered into before the Commencement Date: or
  - (iv) pay for, subsidise or promote any activity other than those required as Inputs for the Project and directly associated costs

unless this has been approved in writing by Selnet after consultation with the Strategic Management Board.

- (d) No Party shall spend any part of the Funding on the delivery of the Project after the Project Period unless this has been approved in writing by Selnet after consultation with the Strategic Management Board.
- (e) Should any part of the Funding remain unspent at the end of the Project Period, each Party shall so far as it is able shall ensure that any unspent monies are returned to Selnet to be dealt with as determined by the terms of the Funding.
- (f) Any liabilities arising at the end of the Project including any redundancy liabilities for staff employed by a Party to deliver the Project must be managed and paid for by the relevant Party using the other resources of the Party. There will be no additional funding available from Selnet for this purpose and the Funding may not be used for this purpose.
- (g) Each Party shall act in accordance with all guidance and rules relating to equality, diversity, sustainability or other objectives relating to the application of Funding as promulgated from time to time.

#### 8.5 Accounts and records

(a) The Funding shall be shown in the Parties' accounts as a restricted fund and shall not be included under general funds. Each Party shall provide evidence of this to

- Selnet as soon as practicable in the form of its most recent annual accounts where Selnet requests this.
- (b) Each Party shall keep separate, accurate and up-to-date accounts and records of the receipt and expenditure of the Funding monies received by it.
- (c) Each Party shall keep all invoices, receipts, and accounts and any other relevant documents relating to the expenditure of the Funding for a period of at least ten (10) years following receipt of any Funding monies to which they relate or for such other period as the Fund may from time to time require. Selnet shall have the right to review, at its reasonable request, any Party's accounts and records that relate to the expenditure of the Funding and shall have the right to take copies of such accounts and records. Access to the premises of all Parties will be required by the funders for up to 10 years from the end of the grant period for review of related documents.
- (d) Each Party shall comply and facilitate Selnet's compliance with all statutory requirements as regards accounts, audit or examination of accounts, annual reports and annual returns including requirements imposed under the Funding terms.

#### 8.6 Monitoring and reporting

- (a) Each Party shall closely monitor the delivery and success of the Project throughout the Project Period to ensure that the aims and objectives of the Project are being met and that this agreement is being adhered to.
- (b) Each Party shall provide Selnet with a financial report and an operational report on its use of the Funding and delivery of the Project every quarter and in such formats and including such data as Selnet may reasonably require from time to time. Each Party shall provide Selnet with each report alongside their quarterly claim submission, the timetable for which can be accessed at <a href="www.bbolancs.org.uk">www.bbolancs.org.uk</a> or other such website as subsequently notified to you.
- (c) Where a party has obtained funding from a third party for its delivery of part of the Project, it shall include the amount of such funding in its financial reports together with details of what that funding has been used for.
- (d) Each Party shall on request provide Selnet with such further information, explanations and documents as Selnet may reasonably require in order for it to establish that the Funding has been used properly in accordance with this agreement.
- (e) Each Party shall permit any person authorised by Selnet such reasonable access to its employees, agents, premises, facilities and records, for the purpose of discussing, monitoring and evaluating the Party's fulfilment of the conditions of this agreement and shall, if so required, provide appropriate oral or written explanations from them.
- (f) Each Party shall permit any person authorised by Selnet for the purpose to visit the party once every quarter to monitor the delivery of the Project. Where, in its

- reasonable opinion, Selnet considers that additional visits are necessary to monitor the Project, it shall be entitled to authorise any person to make such visits on its behalf.
- (g) Each Party shall provide Selnet with a final report on completion of the Project Period which shall confirm whether the Project has been successfully and properly completed.
- (h) Each Party shall as required by Selnet participate in, collaborate with and provide evidence for use in any evaluation exercise in relation to the Project.

### 8.7 Acknowledgment and publicity

- (a) Each party shall acknowledge the Funding in its annual report and accounts, including an acknowledgement of European Social Fund and National Lottery Community Fund as the source of the Funding.
- (b) Each party shall adhere to branding guidelines issued by ESF and the Fund, which are subject to change and will be circulated to partners by Selnet.
- (c) Each Party shall not publish any material referring to the Project or the Funding without the prior written agreement of Selnet. Each Party shall acknowledge the Funding in any materials that refer to the Project and in any written or spoken public presentations about the Project. Such acknowledgements (where appropriate or as requested by Selnet) shall include the materials, logos and other information specified for the purpose by Selnet from time to time. Each Party shall act in accordance with all branding guidelines associated with receipt of Funding as promulgated from time to time.
- (d) Each Party agrees to participate in and co-operate with promotional activities relating to the Project that may be instigated and/or organised by Selnet.
- (e) Each Party shall comply with all reasonable requests from Selnet to facilitate visits, provide reports, statistics, photographs and case studies that will assist Selnet in its promotional and fundraising activities relating to the Project.

#### 8.8 Withholding, suspending and repayment of Grant

- (a) Selnet's intention is that the Funding will be paid to the Parties in full. However, without prejudice to Selnet's other rights and remedies, Selnet may at its discretion after consultation with the Strategic Management Board withhold or suspend payment of the Funding and/or require repayment of all or part of the Funding if:
  - (i) the Funding is terminated or suspended;
  - (ii) a Party uses the Funding for purposes other than those for which it was awarded;
  - (iii) the delivery of the Project by a Party does not start within 3 (three) months of the Commencement Date and the Party has failed to provide a reasonable explanation for the delay;

- (iv) the Party has become subject to a Performance Improvement Plan as a result of not making satisfactory progress with the delivery of the Project;
- (v) the Party is delivering the Project in a negligent manner;
- (vi) the Party obtains duplicate funding from a third party for the Project;
- (vii) the Party obtains funding from a third party which, in the reasonable opinion of Management Board, undertakes activities that are likely to bring the reputation of the Project or Selnet into disrepute;
- (viii) the Party provides Selnet with any materially misleading or inaccurate information;
- (ix) any member of the governing body, employee or volunteer of the Party has
   (a) acted dishonestly or negligently at any time and directly or indirectly to the detriment of the Project or (b) taken any actions which, in the reasonable opinion of Selnet after consultation with the Strategic Management Board, bring or are likely to bring the Project or Selnet's name or reputation into disrepute;
- (x) the Party ceases to operate for any reason, or it passes a resolution (or any court of competent jurisdiction makes an order) that it be wound up or dissolved (other than for the purpose of a bona fide and solvent reconstruction or amalgamation);
- (xi) the Party becomes insolvent, or it is declared bankrupt, or it is placed into receivership, administration or liquidation, or a petition has been presented for its winding up, or it enters into any arrangement or composition for the benefit of its creditors, or it is unable to pay its debts as they fall due; or
- (xii) the Party fails to comply with any of the terms and conditions set out in this agreement or its Adherence Agreement and fails to rectify any such failure within 30 days of receiving written notice detailing the failure.
- (b) Should the Party be subject to financial or other difficulties which are capable of having a material impact on its effective delivery of the Project or compliance with this agreement or its Adherence Agreement it will notify Selnet as soon as possible so that, if possible, and without creating any legal obligation, Selnet will have an opportunity to provide assistance in resolving the problem or to take action to protect Selnet and the Funding monies.

# 9. CONFIDENTIALITY

- 9.1 **Confidential Information** means all confidential information (however recorded or preserved) disclosed by a Party or its employees, officers, representatives or advisers (together its **Representatives**) to the other Party and that Party's Representatives whether before or after the date of this agreement in connection with the Project, including information which:
  - (a) relates to the existence and terms of this agreement;

- (b) would be regarded as confidential by a reasonable businessperson, relating to:
  - the business, assets, affairs, customers, clients, suppliers, or plans, intentions, or market opportunities of the disclosing Party (or of any member of the Group of companies to which the disclosing Party belongs); and
  - (ii) the operations, processes, product information, know-how, designs, trade secrets or software of the disclosing Party (or of any member of the Group of companies to which the disclosing Party belongs);
- (c) is developed by the parties in the course of carrying out this agreement and the Project; or
- (d) is specified as confidential in an Adherence Agreement.
- 9.2 The provisions of this clause shall not apply to any Confidential Information that:
  - is or becomes generally available to the public (other than as a result of its disclosure by the receiving Party or its Representatives in breach of this clause);
     or
  - (b) was available to the receiving Party on a non-confidential basis before disclosure by the disclosing Party; or
  - (c) was, is or becomes available to the receiving Party on a non-confidential basis from a person who, to the receiving Party's knowledge, is not bound by a confidentiality agreement with the disclosing Party or otherwise prohibited from disclosing the information to the receiving Party; or
  - (d) the parties agree in writing is not confidential or may be disclosed; or
  - (e) is developed by or for the receiving Party independently of the information disclosed by the disclosing Party.
- 9.3 Each Party shall keep each other Party's Confidential Information confidential and shall not:
  - (a) use such Confidential Information except for the purpose of exercising or performing its rights and obligations under this agreement in relation to the Focus and a Project (**Permitted Purpose**); or
  - (b) disclose such Confidential Information in whole or in part to any third Party, except as expressly permitted by this clause.
- 9.4 A Party may disclose another Party's Confidential Information to those of its Representatives who need to know such Confidential Information for the Permitted Purpose, provided that:
  - (a) it informs such Representatives of the confidential nature of the Confidential Information before disclosure; and

(b) it procures that its Representatives shall, in relation to any Confidential Information disclosed to them, comply with the obligations set out in this clause as if they were a Party to this agreement,

and at all times, it is liable for the failure of any Representatives to comply with the obligations set out in this clause.

- A Party may disclose Confidential Information to the extent such Confidential Information is required to be disclosed by law, by any governmental or other regulatory authority or by a court or other authority of competent jurisdiction provided that, to the extent it is legally permitted to do so, it gives the other Party as much notice of such disclosure as possible and, where notice of disclosure is not prohibited and is given in accordance with this clause 9.5, it takes into account the reasonable requests of the other Party in relation to the content of such disclosure.
- 9.6 A Party may, provided that it has reasonable grounds to believe that the other Party is involved in activity that may constitute a criminal offence under the Bribery Act 2010, disclose Confidential Information to the Serious Fraud Office without first informing the other Party of such disclosure.
- 9.7 Each Party reserves all rights in its Confidential Information. No rights or obligations in respect of a Party's Confidential Information other than those expressly stated in this agreement are granted to the other Party, or to be implied from this agreement.
- 9.8 On termination of this agreement, unless such things are needed by it to perform its obligations under an Adherence Agreement (and only until the end of such time), each Party shall in relation to each other Party:
  - (a) return to the originating Party all documents and materials (and any copies) containing, reflecting, incorporating or based on the other Party's Confidential Information;
  - (b) erase all the other Party's Confidential Information from computer and communications systems and devices used by it, including such systems and data storage services provided by third parties (to the extent technically practicable); and
  - (c) certify in writing to the other Party that it has complied with the requirements of this clause, provided that a recipient Party may retain documents and materials containing, reflecting, incorporating or based on the other Party's Confidential Information to the extent required by law or any applicable governmental or regulatory authority. The provisions of this clause shall continue to apply to any such documents and materials retained by a recipient Party.
- 9.9 Except as expressly stated in this agreement, no Party makes any express or implied warranty or representation concerning its Confidential Information.

9.10 The provisions of this clause 9 shall continue to apply after termination of this agreement in accordance with clause 21.

#### 10. ANNOUNCEMENTS

Subject to clause 10.2, no Party shall make, or permit any person to make, any public announcement, communication or circular (**announcement**) concerning this agreement without the prior written consent of the other Parties (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed). The parties shall consult together on the timing, contents and manner of release of any announcement.

#### 10.2 Announcements Permitted

- (a) Where an announcement is required by law or any governmental or regulatory authority (including, without limitation, any relevant securities exchange), or by any court or other authority of competent jurisdiction, the Party required to make the announcement shall promptly notify the other Party. The Party concerned shall make all reasonable attempts to agree the contents of the announcement before making it.
- (b) Selnet may make such announcements as are anticipated in the Bid or in any Adherence Agreement.

#### 11. DATA PROTECTION

- 11.1 Each Party shall ensure that it complies with the requirements of all legislation and regulatory requirements in force from time to time relating to the use of personal data, including, without limitation, the Data Protection Act 2018 and the General Data Protection Regulation (EU) 2016/679.
- Without prejudice to the generality of clause 11.1 each Party shall comply with the Data Sharing Protocol applicable to the Project as set out at Schedule 4.

#### 12. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

- 12.1 This agreement does not transfer any interest in Intellectual Property Rights. All Intellectual Property Rights developed or created by a Party pursuant to a Project shall be owned by that Party (**Created IPR**).
- 12.2 Each Party grants to the other Parties a non-exclusive, personal, royalty-free licence during the applicable Project Period to use its Created IPR in relation to a Project to the extent necessary for the other Party to carry out its obligations in relation to that Project.
- 12.3 At the end of the applicable Project Period, a Party licensed to use Created IPR under clause 12.2 shall cease to use that Created IPR and shall return any physical embodiment of the Created IPR (including any copies) in its possession or control to the other Party

save where and to the extent necessary to perform ongoing obligations arising from its Inputs or Adherence Agreement.

12.4 Each Party shall immediately give written notice to the other Party of any actual, threatened or suspected infringement of any Party's Intellectual Property Rights (including Created IPR) used in connection with a Project of which it becomes aware.

#### 13. EMPLOYEES AND NON-SOLICITATION

13.1 A Party shall not, without the prior written consent of the other Party affected, at any time during the Project Period, solicit or entice away from that other Party or employ or attempt to employ any person who is, or has been, engaged as an employee, consultant or subcontractor of that Party in relation to the Project.

#### 14. ANTI-BRIBERY

- 14.1 Each Party shall in relation to this agreement and the Project:
  - (a) comply with all applicable laws, statutes, regulations, and codes relating to antibribery and anti-corruption including but not limited to the Bribery Act 2010 (**Relevant Requirements**);
  - (b) not engage in any activity, practice or conduct which would constitute an offence under sections 1, 2 or 6 of the Bribery Act 2010 if such activity, practice or conduct had been carried out in the UK:
  - (c) have and shall maintain in place throughout the term of this agreement its own policies and procedures, including but not limited to adequate procedures under the Bribery Act 2010, to ensure compliance with the Relevant Requirements and clause 14.1(b), and will enforce them where appropriate;
  - (d) promptly report to the other Party any request or demand for any undue financial or other advantage of any kind received by it in connection with the performance of this agreement;
  - (e) immediately notify the other Party (in writing) if a foreign public official becomes an officer or employee of it or acquires a direct or indirect interest in it and warrants that it has no foreign public officials as direct or indirect owners, officers or employees at the Commencement Date);
  - (f) within 3 months of the Commencement Date, and annually thereafter, certify to the other Party in writing signed by one of its officers, compliance with this clause 14 by it and all persons associated with it under clause 14.2. Each Party shall provide such supporting evidence of compliance as the other Party may reasonably request.
- 14.2 Each Party shall ensure that any person associated with it who is performing obligations in connection with this agreement does so only on the basis of a written contract which

imposes on and secures from such person terms equivalent to those imposed on that Party in this clause 14 (**Relevant Terms**). Such Party shall be responsible for the observance and performance by such persons of the Relevant Terms and shall be directly liable to the other Party for any breach by such persons of any of the Relevant Terms.

- 14.3 Breach of this clause 14 shall be deemed a material breach under clause 19.2.
- 14.4 For the purpose of this clause 14, the meaning of adequate procedures and foreign public official and whether a person is associated with another person shall be determined in accordance with section 7(2) of the Bribery Act 2010 (and any guidance issued under section 9 of that Act), sections 6(5) and 6(6) of that Act and section 8 of that Act respectively. For the purposes of this clause 14, a person associated with a Party includes but is not limited to any subcontractor of that Party.

#### 15. WARRANTIES

#### 15.1 Each Party warrants that:

- (a) it has full power and authority to carry out the actions contemplated under this agreement including the Bid and Adherence Agreement and may do so without any infringement of its constitutional documents; and
- (b) its entry into and performance under the terms of this agreement will not infringe the Intellectual Property Rights of any third party or cause it to be in breach of any obligations to a third party; and
- (c) subject to clause 9.9, so far as it is aware, all information, data and materials provided by it under this agreement will be accurate and complete in all material respects, and it is entitled to provide the same to the other without recourse to any third party.
- 15.2 Except as expressly provided in this agreement, there are no conditions, warranties or other terms binding on the parties with respect to the actions contemplated by this agreement. Any condition, warranty or other term in this regard that might otherwise be implied or incorporated into this agreement, whether by statute, common law or otherwise, is, to the extent that it is lawful to do so, excluded by this agreement.

#### 16. INDEMNITY

- In this clause, a reference to an **indemnified Party** shall include that Party's subsidiaries, and the provisions of this clause shall be for the benefit of that Party and each such subsidiary, and shall be enforceable by each such subsidiary, in addition to the Party.
- 16.2 Each Party (**indemnifying Party**) shall indemnify each other Party (**indemnified Party**) against all liabilities, costs, expenses, damages and losses (including but not limited to any direct, indirect or consequential losses, loss of profit, loss of reputation and all interest, penalties and legal costs (calculated on a full indemnity basis) and all other

reasonable professional costs and expenses) suffered or incurred by the indemnified Party arising out of or in connection with any claim made against the indemnified Party for actual or alleged infringement of a third Party's Intellectual Property Rights arising out of or in connection with:

- (a) the indemnified Party's use in accordance with this agreement of Intellectual Property Rights licensed to it by the indemnifying Party under clause 12.2; or
- (b) the receipt or use by any person including the indemnified Party of Inputs or other items or services provided by the indemnifying Party in relation to the Project.
- 16.3 This indemnity shall not cover the indemnified Party to the extent that a claim under it results from the indemnified Party's negligence or wilful misconduct.
- 16.4 Liability under this indemnity is conditional on the indemnified Party discharging the following obligations. If any third Party makes a claim, or notifies an intention to make a claim, against the indemnified Party which may reasonably be considered likely to give rise to a liability under this indemnity (**Claim**), the indemnified Party shall:
  - (a) as soon as reasonably practicable, give written notice of the Claim to the indemnifying Party, specifying the nature of the Claim in reasonable detail;
  - (b) not make any admission of liability, agreement or compromise in relation to the Claim without the prior written consent of the indemnifying Party (such consent not to be unreasonably conditioned, withheld or delayed), provided that the indemnified Party may settle the Claim (after giving prior written notice of the terms of settlement (to the extent legally possible) to the indemnifying Party, but without obtaining the indemnifying Party's consent) if the indemnified Party reasonably believes that failure to settle the Claim would be prejudicial to it in any material respect;
  - (c) give the indemnifying Party and its professional advisers access at reasonable times (on reasonable prior notice) to its premises and its officers, directors, employees, agents, representatives or advisers, and to any relevant assets, accounts, documents and records within the power or control of the indemnified Party, so as to enable the indemnifying Party and its professional advisers to examine them and to take copies (at the indemnifying Party's expense) for the purpose of assessing the Claim; and
  - (d) subject to the indemnifying Party providing security to the indemnified Party to the indemnified Party's reasonable satisfaction against any claim, liability, costs, expenses, damages or losses which may be incurred, take such action as the indemnifying Party may reasonably request to avoid, dispute, compromise or defend the Claim.
- 16.5 If a payment due from the indemnifying Party under this clause is subject to tax (whether by way of direct assessment or withholding at its source), the indemnified Party shall be

entitled to receive from the indemnifying Party such amounts as shall ensure that the net receipt, after tax, to the indemnified Party in respect of the payment is the same as it would have been were the payment not subject to tax.

Nothing in this clause shall restrict or limit the indemnified Party's general obligation at law to mitigate a loss it may suffer or incur as a result of an event that may give rise to a claim under this indemnity.

#### 17. INSURANCE

During the term of this agreement and for a period of 7 years thereafter, each Party shall maintain in force, with a reputable insurance company policies of insurance against the risks specified and to the values set out in the applicable Adherence Agreement and shall, on Selnet's request, produce both the insurance certificate giving details of cover and the receipt for the current year's premium.

#### 18. LIMITATION AND EXCLUSION OF LIABILITY

- 18.1 Nothing in this agreement shall limit or exclude a Party's liability:
  - (a) for death or personal injury caused by its negligence, or that of its employees, agents or sub-contractors;
  - (b) for fraud or fraudulent misrepresentation;
  - (c) for breach of any obligation as to title or quiet possession implied by statute; or
  - (d) for any other act, omission, or liability which may not be limited or excluded by law;
  - (e) under the indemnity in clause 16.
- 18.2 Subject to clause 18.1, neither Party shall have any liability to any other Party, whether in contract, tort (including negligence), breach of statutory duty, or otherwise, for
  - (a) any loss of profit, or
  - (b) for any indirect or consequential loss arising under or in connection with the agreement.
- 18.3 Subject to clause 18.1 a Party's total liability to the other Party, whether in contract, tort (including negligence), breach of statutory duty, or otherwise, arising under or in connection with this agreement shall be limited to the amount of Funding allocated to it in its Adherence Agreement as varied from time to time in accordance with this agreement PROVIDED THAT in the event of termination of an Adherence Agreement the applicable value shall be that allocated to the Adherence Agreement immediately before its termination.

18.4 The parties expressly agree that if any limitation or provision contained or expressly referred to in this clause 18 is held to be invalid under any applicable statute or rule of law, it shall, to that extent, be deemed omitted in accordance with clause 26.

#### 19. TERMINATION OR ALTERATION OF ADHERENCE AGREEMENT

- 19.1 The grounds and procedures for terminating or altering the scope of an Adherence Agreement shall be as set out in this clause provided that termination of a Party's Adherence Agreement shall require a decision of the board of Directors of Selnet taken after consultation with the Strategic Management Board.
- 19.2 For the purposes of this clause **material breach** means a breach (including an anticipatory breach) that is serious in the widest sense of having a serious effect on the benefit which would otherwise derive from:
  - (a) the defaulting Party's Inputs; or
  - (b) any of the obligations set out in clause 5.1, over a three-month period during the Project Period. In deciding whether any breach is material, no regard shall be had to whether it occurs by some accident, mishap, mistake or misunderstanding.
- 19.3 Selnet may terminate or by notice with immediate effect reduce the scope of a Party's Adherence Agreement:
  - (a) if the other Party fails to pay any amount due under this agreement on the due date for payment and remains in default not less than 60 days after being notified in writing to make such payment;
  - (b) if the other Party commits a material breach of any term of this agreement or its Adherence Agreement which breach is irremediable or (if such breach is remediable) fails to remedy that breach within a period of 90 days after being required in writing to do so in the form of a Performance Improvement Plan;
  - (c) if the other Party repeatedly breaches any of the terms of this agreement or its Adherence Agreement in such a manner as to reasonably justify the opinion that its conduct is inconsistent with it having the intention or ability to give effect to the terms of this agreement or its Adherence Agreement;
  - (d) if the other Party suspends, or threatens to suspend, payment of its debts or is unable to pay its debts as they fall due or admits inability to pay its debts or (being a company or limited liability partnership) is deemed unable to pay its debts within the meaning of section 123 of the Insolvency Act 1986;
  - (e) if the other Party commences negotiations with all or any class of its creditors with a view to rescheduling any of its debts, or makes a proposal for or enters into any compromise or arrangement with its creditors other than (being a company) for the sole purpose of a scheme for a solvent amalgamation of that

- other Party with one or more other companies or the solvent reconstruction of that other Party;
- (f) if a petition is filed, a notice is given, a resolution is passed, or an order is made, for or in connection with the winding up of that other Party (being a company) other than for the sole purpose of a scheme for a solvent amalgamation of that other Party with one or more other companies or the solvent reconstruction of that other Party where that process is compatible with continued participation in the Project;
- (g) if an application is made to court, or an order is made, for the appointment of an administrator, or if a notice of intention to appoint an administrator is given or if an administrator is appointed, over the other Party (being a company);
- (h) if the holder of a qualifying floating charge over the assets of that other Party (being a company) has become entitled to appoint or has appointed an administrative receiver:
- (i) if a person becomes entitled to appoint a receiver over the assets of the other Party or a receiver is appointed over the assets of the other Party;
- (j) if a creditor or encumbrancer of the other Party attaches or takes possession of, or a distress, execution, sequestration or other such process is levied or enforced on or sued against, the whole or any part of the other Party's assets and such attachment or process is not discharged within 14 days;
- (k) if any event occurs, or proceeding is taken, with respect to the other Party in any jurisdiction to which it is subject that has an effect equivalent or similar to any of the events mentioned in clause 19.3(d) to clause 19.3(j) (inclusive);
- (l) if the other Party suspends or ceases, or threatens to suspend or cease, carrying on all or a substantial part of its business;
- (m) if any warranty given by the other Party in clause 15 of this agreement is found to be untrue or misleading;
- (n) if the other party is not capable of continued lawful participation in the Project; or
- (o) in accordance with clause 22 (Force Majeure).
- Subject always to clause 3.4 a Party may terminate its Adherence Agreement on giving not less than **three months' written notice** to Selnet as agent for the other Parties.
- 19.5 Termination of an Adherence Agreement in accordance with this clause shall have the effect that:
  - (a) the terminated Adherence Agreement shall be severed from the agreement, which shall otherwise remain in full force and effect including Schedule 5; and
  - (b) the provisions of clause 21 shall otherwise apply (*mutatis mutandis*) in relation to the Adherence Agreement.

19.6 Selnet may, after consultation with the Strategic Management Board, amend the terms of one or more Adherence Agreements to change the allocation of the Funding and the requirements for Inputs (which may for the avoidance of doubt be an increase or a decrease) where to do so is conducive to the effective delivery of the Project as a proportionate response to demand for some Inputs being more or less than expected or as a result of one or more Adherence Agreements being terminated.

## 20. TERMINATION OF ENTIRE AGREEMENT

- 20.1 Without affecting any other right or remedy available to it, the board of directors of Selnet may after consultation with the Strategic Management Board terminate this agreement and all Adherence Agreements with immediate effect by giving written notice to all other Parties if:
  - (a) the Funding ceases, is withdrawn or becomes repayable to an extent considered incompatible with continued delivery of the Project;
  - (b) continued delivery of the project would be unlawful.

#### 21. CONSEQUENCES OF TERMINATION

- 21.1 On termination of this agreement, the following clauses shall continue in force:
  - (a) Clause 1 (Interpretation);
  - (b) Clause 8 (Recovery of Costs);
  - (c) Clause 9 (Confidentiality) (subject to clause 9.10);
  - (d) Clause 11 (Data protection);
  - (e) Clause 12 (Intellectual property);
  - (f) Clause 13 (Employees and non-solicitation);
  - (g) Clause 15.1(b) and clause 15.2 (Warranties);
  - (h) Clause 16 (Indemnity);
  - (i) Clause 17 (Insurance);
  - (j) Clause 18 (Limitation and exclusion of liability);
  - (k) Clause 19.5 (Termination of a Project);
  - (l) Clause 21 (Consequences of termination);
  - (m) Clause 22 (Force majeure);
  - (n) Clause 25 (Notices);
  - (o) Clause 26 (Severance);
  - (p) Clause 27 (No partnership or agency);
  - (q) Clause 28 (Rights and remedies);

- (r) Clause 29 (Waiver);
- (s) Clause 32 (Third Party rights);
- (t) Clause 35 (Entire agreement);
- (u) Clause 36 (Mediation);
- (v) Clause 37 (Governing law);
- (w) Clause 38 (Jurisdiction).
- 21.2 Termination of this agreement shall not affect any rights, remedies, obligations or liabilities of the parties that have accrued up to the date of termination, including the right to claim damages in respect of any breach of the agreement which existed at or before the date of termination.
- 21.3 On termination of this agreement in relation to a Party this agreement shall continue in effect between the remaining Parties.
- On termination of this agreement in relation to it, unless such things are needed by it to perform its obligations under an Adherence Agreement (and only until the end of such time), each Party shall as soon as reasonably practicable after termination of this agreement:
  - (a) return or destroy (as directed in writing by each other Party) any documents, handbooks, or other information or data provided to it by that other Party for the purposes of this agreement. If reasonably required by the other Party, it shall provide written evidence (in the form of a letter signed by it no later than 7 days after termination of this agreement) that these have been destroyed and that it has not retained any copies of them; and
  - (b) return all of each other Party's equipment and materials, failing which, the other Party may enter the relevant premises and take possession of them. Until these are returned or repossessed, that Party shall be solely responsible for their safe keeping.

#### 22. FORCE MAJEURE

No Party shall be in breach of this agreement nor liable for delay in performing, or failure to perform, any of its obligations under this agreement if such delay or failure result from events, circumstances or causes beyond its reasonable control. In such circumstances the affected Party shall be entitled to a reasonable extension of the time for performing such obligations. If the period of delay or non-performance continues for 90 days, the board of directors of Selnet may after consultation with the Strategic Management Board terminate the affected Party's Adherence Agreement by giving 30 days' written notice to the affected Party.

#### 23. ASSIGNMENT AND OTHER DEALINGS

- 23.1 Subject to clause 23.2, no Party shall assign, transfer, mortgage, charge, subcontract, declare a trust over or deal in any other manner with any or all of its rights and obligations under this agreement without the prior written consent of Selnet to be given or withheld after consultation with the Strategic Management Board.
- A Party may assign or subcontract any or all of its rights and obligations under this agreement and its Adherence Agreement provided that any such assignment:
  - (a) is compatible with Regulation 72 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 and
  - (b) is compatible with Funding rules and conditions and
  - (c) is approved by Selnet after consultation with the Strategic Management Board.

#### 24. VARIATION

- Save as provided for in clause 24.3 no variation of this agreement shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by the Parties (or their authorised representatives).
- 24.2 Save as provided for in clause 24.3 no variation of an Adherence Agreement shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by the affected Party and Selnet as agent for the other Parties.
- 24.3 Variations and terminations permitted by clause 19 and clause 22 may take place in accordance with the terms of those clauses.

#### 25. NOTICES

- 25.1 A notice given to a Party under or in connection with this agreement shall be in writing and sent to the Party at the address, fax number or email address given in this agreement or the relevant Adherence Agreement or as otherwise notified in writing by the recipient Party to each other Party.
- 25.2 The following table sets out methods by which a notice may be sent and, if sent by that method, the corresponding deemed delivery date and time:

Delivery method	Deemed delivery date and time
Delivery by hand.	On signature of a delivery receipt or at the time the notice is left at the address.
Pre-paid first class recorded delivery post or other next Business Day delivery service providing proof of postage.	9.00 am on the second Business Day after posting.
providing proof of postage.	

Delivery by fax Immediately subject to a successful

transmission report.

Delivery by email Immediately in the absence of any

notification of delivery failure.

25.3 For the purpose of clause 25.2 and calculating deemed receipt:

(a) all references to time are to local time in the place of deemed receipt; and

- (b) if deemed receipt would occur in the place of deemed receipt on day that is not a Business Day or before 9.00am or after 5.00pm on a Business Day, deemed receipt is deemed to take place at the first occurrence of 9.00 am on a Business Day after what would but for this clause have been the time of deemed receipt.
- 25.4 This clause does not apply to the service of any proceedings or other documents in any legal action or, where applicable, any arbitration or other method of dispute resolution.

#### 26. SEVERANCE

- 26.1 If any provision or part-provision of this agreement is or becomes invalid, illegal or unenforceable, it shall be deemed modified to the minimum extent necessary to make it valid, legal and enforceable. If such modification is not possible, the relevant provision or part-provision shall be deemed deleted. Any modification to or deletion of a provision or part-provision under this clause shall not affect the validity and enforceability of the rest of this agreement.
- 26.2 If one Party gives notice to the others of the possibility that any provision or partprovision of this agreement is invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the Parties shall negotiate in good faith to amend such provision so that, as amended, it is legal, valid and enforceable, and, to the greatest extent possible, achieves the intended commercial result of the original provision.

#### 27. NO PARTNERSHIP OR AGENCY

- Nothing in this agreement is intended to, or shall be deemed to, establish any partnership between any of the Parties, constitute any Party the agent of another Party, or authorise any Party to make or enter into any commitments for or on behalf of any other Party except as expressly provided.
- 27.2 Each Party confirms it is acting on its own behalf and not for the benefit of any other person.

#### 28. RIGHTS AND REMEDIES

Except as expressly provided in this agreement, the rights and remedies provided under this agreement are in addition to, and not exclusive of, any rights or remedies provided by law.

#### 29. WAIVER

- A waiver of any right or remedy under this agreement or by law is only effective if given in writing and shall not be deemed a waiver of any subsequent breach or default.
- 29.2 A failure or delay to exercise any right or remedy provided under this agreement or by law shall not constitute a waiver of that or any other right or remedy, nor shall it prevent or restrict any further exercise of that or any other right or remedy. No single or partial exercise of any right or remedy provided under this agreement or by law shall prevent or restrict the further exercise of that or any other right or remedy.

#### 30. LANGUAGE

This agreement is drafted in the English language. If this agreement is translated into any other language, the English language version shall prevail.

#### 31. COUNTERPARTS

- This agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which when executed shall constitute a duplicate original, but all the counterparts shall together constitute the one agreement.
- Transmission of the executed signature page of a counterpart of this agreement by (a) fax or (b) e-mail (in PDF, JPEG or other agreed format) shall take effect as delivery of an executed counterpart of this agreement. If either method of delivery is adopted, without prejudice to the validity of the agreement thus made, each Party shall provide the others with the original of such counterpart as soon as reasonably possible thereafter.
- 31.3 No counterpart shall be effective until each Party has executed at least one counterpart.

#### 32. THIRD PARTY RIGHTS

- Except as expressly provided elsewhere in this agreement, a person who is not a Party to this agreement shall not have any rights under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to enforce any term of this agreement. This does not affect any right or remedy of a third Party which exists, or is available, apart from that Act.
- The rights of the parties to terminate, rescind or agree any variation, waiver or settlement under this agreement are not subject to the consent of any other person.

#### 33. FURTHER ASSURANCE

At its own expense, each Party shall, and shall use all reasonable endeavours to procure that any necessary third party shall, promptly execute and deliver such documents and perform such acts as may reasonably be required for the purpose of giving full effect to this agreement.

#### 34. Costs

Each Party shall pay its own costs incurred in connection with the negotiation, preparation, and execution of this agreement and any documents referred to in it.

# 35. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

- 35.1 This agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes and extinguishes all previous drafts, agreements, arrangements and understandings between them, whether written or oral, relating to its subject matter.
- Each Party agrees that it shall have no remedies in respect of any representation or warranty (whether made innocently or negligently) that is not set out in this agreement. No Party shall have any claim for innocent or negligent misrepresentation based on any statement in this agreement.

#### 36. MEDIATION

- If any dispute arises in connection with this agreement, the affected Parties will attempt to settle it by mediation in accordance with the Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution (CEDR) Model Mediation Procedure. Unless otherwise agreed between the affected Parties, the mediator will be nominated by CEDR. To initiate the mediation an affected Party must give notice in writing (ADR notice) to each other Party to the dispute and to Selnet as agent for the other Parties requesting a mediation. A copy of the request should be sent to CEDR.
- 36.2 The mediation will start not later than 14 days after the date of the ADR notice.
- Affected Parties may seek alternative remedies on an interim basis before or during mediation where and to the extent necessary to protect or preserve rights or assets pending the outcome of mediation or any other dispute resolution process following it.

#### 37. GOVERNING LAW

This agreement and any dispute or claim arising out of or in connection with it or its subject matter or formation (including non-contractual disputes or claims) shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of England and Wales.

#### 38. **JURISDICTION**

Each Party irrevocably agrees that, subject to clause 36, the courts of England and Wales shall have non-exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute or claim arising out of or in connection with this agreement or its subject matter or formation (including non-contractual disputes or claims).

This agreement has been entered into on the date stated at the beginning of it.

# Schedule 1

# **Delivery Partners and Partner Involvement Summary**

See attached m/s Excel spreadsheet:

'I AoP - Master PA Schedule 1 All Partner details - Project Extension'

# Schedule 2

# **Strategic Management Board**

# Strategic Management Board

Membership	The SMB consists of members that have a keen interest in securing the success of the BBO projects. The board includes key people from external agencies and organisations independent from the project delivery, Individuals with experience and expertise across a range of inter-dependent sectors such as; Equality and Diversity, Sustainability, Housing, Health, Age, Lancashire County Council, District Council, Lancashire LEP/Skill Hub, Voluntary and Community Sector Public Sector (Police, Education, DWP) and the Private sector.
Means of Appointment or Selection	By invitation from the board
Frequency of Meetings	Quarterly
Notice of Meetings	21 days
Quorum	The meeting will be quorate if four or more members are present.
Casting Vote	n/a
Fixed Agenda Items	Conflict of Interest declarations Procurement and Partner Performance reports BBO Project Updates
Other	n/a
Conflict of Interest Arrangements	Meeting agenda

# Schedule 3 Form of Adherence Agreement

# Part 1. This Adherence Agreement is dated 1st April 2020 and made between:

PARTNER NAME incorporated and registered in England and Wales with company number 10086085 whose registered office is at PARTNER DDRESS ([The Party]) and SELNET LIMITED incorporated and registered in England and Wales with company number 05671228 whose registered office is at Brentwood House Victoria Road, Fulwood, Preston, England, PR2 8PS acting as agent for the other parties to the agreement (as defined below) (Selnet).

### Part 2. Background

- (A) The Party is a party to a collaboration agreement dated 1st April 2020 (**agreement**), allowing it and others to collaborate on the Project as defined in the agreement.
- (B) In connection with the agreement, the Party has agreed to the obligations in this Adherence Agreement.

## Part 3. Project provisions

The parties agree that:

#### 1. DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

The project aims to improve work readiness and employability of the over 50s in the Lancashire Area.

It will support participants by taking a holistic approach to overcome their individual barriers to employability. The project will also challenge perceptions of employers to highlight the value that the over 50s can offer.

The project will be delivered across Lancashire and will include Blackburn with Darwen, Blackpool and Burnley, Pendle, Hyndburn and Preston, Lancaster, West Lancashire and Wyre, South Ribble, Fylde, Rossendale and Ribble Valley.

<u>Project activities will include:</u> Advice and engagement, Volunteering, IT skills, Financial skills, Job Search, Preparing CVs Interview techniques, Accreditation of prior learning and updating qualifications Employment programme/in employment support, Enterprise Programme, Confidence and resilience building. Telephone helpline and online portal

# 2. INPUTS

The parties shall each provide the following Inputs in relation to the Project, in accordance with the following timeframes (if any):

Input: Engagement and employability provider to engage and provide participants' initial action planning and direction, encourage interaction with the full delivery team and end to end support to help consider options to improve employment prospects.

Timeframe 1st April 2020 to 30th June 2022

#### 3. OUTPUTS

These include the number of: Referrals you bring to the project, participants you support, results you achieve and the Outcomes that happen as a result of this activity.

Performance will be monitored based indicators detailed at **Schedule 1**.

#### 4. COSTS

The Funding allocated to the Party's Inputs is as follows:

	<u> </u>			
Staff Costs	Indirect Costs	Other Direct Costs	Total	funding
			Allocation	
£	£	£		£

Payment Arrangement

Monthly/Quarterly\* in advance

#### Part 4. Additional Terms

#### 1. INSURANCE

Pursuant to clause 17 of the agreement the Party shall keep in place the following insurances:

Туре	Insured Events	Level of Cover
Professional Indemnity	(partners giving advice)	£1m
Public Liability		£5m
Employer's Liability		£10m
[Other?]		

2. Funding shall be shown in the Parties' accounts as a restricted fund and shall not be included under general funds and maintain records of all transactions affecting that account. [FOR SELNET]

# 3. CONTACT DETAILS

3.1 For the purposes of clause 25 of the Collaboration Agreement the following are the correct contact details for the Party at the date of this Adherence Agreement:

Address	[	]				
Fax	[	]				
Email	[	]				

#### Schedule 4

# **Data Sharing Protocol**

# **OVERALL DATA SHARING PROTOCOL**

**Building Better Opportunities 2016-2022** 

# **CONTENTS**

**PREFACE** 

Introduction

THE SCOPE

AIMS AND OBJECTIVES

THE LEGAL FRAMEWORK

INFORMATION COVERED BY THE PROTOCOL

RESPONSIBILITIES WHEN SHARING INFORMATION

RESTRICTIONS ON USE OF INFORMATION SHARED

CONSENT — APPLIES TO PERSONAL DATA ONLY

INDEMNITY

**SECURITY** 

**INFORMATION QUALITY** 

TRAINING

**INDIVIDUAL RESPONSIBILITIES** 

**GENERAL PRINCIPLES** 

**REVIEW ARRANGEMENTS** 

#### 1. Introduction

- 1.1 This document is an Information Sharing Protocol (for the purpose of this protocol, the terms data and information are synonymous). The aim of this document is to facilitate sharing of all personal, sensitive and non-personal data between the delivery partners of the **Building Better Opportunities** project.
- Organisations involved in providing services to the public have a legal responsibility to ensure that their use of personal data is lawful, properly controlled and that an individual's rights are respected. This balance between the need to share personal data to provide quality service and protection of confidentiality is often a difficult one to achieve.
- 1.3 The legal situation regarding the protection and use of personal data can be unclear. This situation may lead to information not being readily available to those who have a genuine need to know in order for them to do their job properly.
- 1.4 There are fewer constraints on the sharing of non-personal data, that is data which either does not identify a living individual or when combined with other information that is in or may come into the organisation's possession will not identify a living individual.
- 1.5 Each partner to this protocol should ensure that all of their staff who are affected by it are
  - aware of its contents and
  - the obligations it and any **Information Sharing Agreements** (ISA) which are created between the organisation signed up to it bring to them.
- 1.6 Each partner should also ensure that revisions to the protocol and ISA raised in it are signed in good time, which should be before any sharing takes place.

## 39. **2. S**COPE

- **40.** FOR INFORMATION TO BE PROCESSED LAWFULLY, THE PROCESSING MUST COMPLY WITH CHAPTER 2, AND THE CORRESPONDING INCLUSION WITHIN DATA PROTECTION ACT 2018.
- 2.1 This overarching protocol sets out the principles for information sharing between Partner Organisations.
- 2.2 This protocol sets out the rules that all people working for or with the Partner Organisations must follow when using and sharing information.
- 2.3 This protocol applies to all information shared by Partner Organisations. Sharing is **not** restricted solely to information classified as Personal Data by the Data Protection Act 2018. This includes the following information:
  - a) All information processed by the organisations including electronically (e.g. computer systems, CCTV, Audio etc), or in manual records;

- b) Anonymised, including aggregated data. The considerations, though less stringent, must take into account factors such as commercial or business, sensitive data, and the effect of many data sets being applied.
- 2.4 The specific purpose for use and sharing information will be defined in the Information Agreements that will be specific to the Partner Organisations sharing information.

## 41. **3.** AIMS AND OBJECTIVES

3.1 The aim of this protocol is to provide a framework for the Partner Organisations and to establish and regulate working practices between Partner Organisations. The protocol also provides guidance to ensure the secure transfer of information, and that information shared is for justifiable legal purposes (see 6.3 and 11.5).

#### 3.2 These aims include:

- a. To guide Partner Organisations on how to share personal information lawfully.
- b. To explain the security and confidentiality laws and principles of information sharing.
- c. To increase awareness and understanding of the key issues.
- d. To emphasise the need to develop and use Information Sharing Agreements.
- e. To support a process that will monitor and review all information flows.
- f. To encourage flows of information.
- g. To protect the Partner Organisations from accusations of wrongful use of personal data.
- h. To identify the legal basis for information sharing.
- 3.3 By becoming a Partner to this Protocol, Partner Organisations are making a commitment to:
  - a. Apply the Information Commissioner's Code of Practice's 'Fair Processing' and 'Best Practices' Standards;
  - b. Adhere to or demonstrate a commitment to achieving the appropriate compliance with the Data Protection Act 2018;
  - c. Develop local Information Sharing Agreements (ISA) that specify transaction details.
- 3.4 Partner Organisations are expected to promote staff awareness of the major requirements of Information Sharing. This will be supported by the production of appropriate guidelines where required that will be made available to all staff via the Partners' Intranet sites and/or via other communication media.

## 42. **4.** THE LEGAL FRAMEWORK

4.1 The principal legislation concerning the protection and use of personal information is

listed below and further explained in:

- Human Rights Act 1998 (article 8)
- The Freedom of Information Act 2000
- Data Protection Act 2018
- The Common Law Duty of Confidence
- Computer Misuse Act
- Civil Contingencies Act 2004
- 4.2 Other legislation may be relevant when sharing specific information.
- 4.3 As part of each ISA, Partner Organisations should identify how they will meet its legal obligations and the legal basis (legislation and appropriate section(s)) under which information may be shared.

#### 43. 5. Information covered by this Protocol

5.1 All Information, including personal data and sensitive personal data as defined in the Data Protection Act 2018 (DPA).

In order to reduce the risks of DPA compliance and security breaches where possible anonymised data should be used.

#### 5.2 Personal Data

- 5.2.1 The term 'personal data' means any information relating to an identified or identifiable living individual and refers to **any** data held as either manual or electronic records, or records held by means of audio and/or visual technology, about an individual who can be personally identified from that data.
- 5.2.2 The term is further defined in the DPA as:
  - Data relating to a living individual who can be identified from those data;
  - Any other information which is in the possession of, or is likely to come into the possession of the data controller (person or organisation collecting that information).
- 5.2.3 The DPA also defines certain classes of personal information as 'sensitive data' where additional conditions must be met for that information to be used and disclosed lawfully.
- 5.2.4 An individual may consider certain information about themselves to be particularly private and may request other data items to be kept especially confidential e.g. any use of a pseudonym where their true identity needs to be withheld to protect them.

#### 5.3 Anonymised Data

- 5.3.1 Organisations should ensure anonymised data, especially when combined with other information from different agencies, does not identify an individual, either directly or by summation.
- 5.3.2 Anonymised data about an individual can be shared without consent (subject to certain restrictions regarding health/social care records), in a form where the identity of the individual cannot be recognised i.e. when:
  - Reference to any data item that could lead to an individual being identified has been removed;
  - The data cannot be combined with any data sources held by a Partner to produce personal identifiable data.

#### 44. 6. RESPONSIBILITIES WHEN SHARING INFORMATION

#### 6.1 General

Each Partner Organisation is responsible for ensuring that their organisational and security measures protect the lawful use of information shared under this Protocol.

- 6.1.1 Partner Organisations will ensure a reasonable level of security for supplied information, personal or non-personal, and process the information accordingly.
- 6.1.2 Partner Organisations accept responsibility for independently or jointly auditing compliance with the Information Sharing Agreements in which they are involved within reasonable time-scales.
- 6.1.3 Every organisation should consider making it a condition of employment that employees will abide by their rules and policies in relation to the protection and use of confidential information. This condition should be written into employment contracts and any failure by an individual to follow the policy should be dealt with in accordance with that organisation's disciplinary procedures.
- 6.1.4 Every organisation should ensure that their contracts with external service providers include a condition that they abide by their rules and policies in relation to the protection and use of confidential information.
- 6.1.5 The Partner Organisation originally supplying the information should be notified of any breach of confidentiality or incident involving a risk or breach of the security of information.
- 6.1.6 Partner Organisations should have a written policy for retention and disposal of information.

#### 6.2 Personal Data

- Personal data should only be shared for a specific lawful purpose or where appropriate consent has been obtained.
- 6.2.1 Staff should only be given access to personal data where there is a legal right, in order for them to perform their duties in connection with the services they are there to deliver.
- 6.2.3 This agreement does not give licence for unrestricted access to information another Partner Organisation may hold. It sets out the parameters for the safe and secure sharing of information for a justifiable **need to know** purpose.
- 6.2.4 Each signatory organisation is responsible for ensuring every member of its staff is aware and complies with the obligation to protect confidentiality and a duty to disclose information only to those who have a right to see it.
- 6.2.5 Each signatory organisation should ensure that any of its staff accessing information under the ISA is trained and fully aware of their responsibilities to maintain the security and confidentiality of personal information.
- 6.2.6 Each signatory organisation should ensure that any of its staff accessing information under the ISA follow the procedures and standards that have been agreed and incorporated within this Information Sharing Protocol and any associated Information Sharing Agreements.
- 6.2.7 Each Partner Organisation will share information in compliance with the principles set out at section 4 and any other obligations detailed in both the ISP and relevant ISA.
- 6.2.8 Personal data shall not be transferred to a country or territory outside the EEA without an adequate level of protection for the rights and freedoms of the data subject in relation to the processing of personal data.

## 6.3 Non-Personal Data

6.3.1 Partner Organisations should not assume the non-personal information is not sensitive and can be freely shared. This may not be the case and the partner from whom the information originated from should be contacted before any further sharing takes place.

## 45. **7.** RESTRICTIONS ON USE OF INFORMATION SHARED

7.1 All shared information, personal or otherwise, must only be used for the purpose(s) specified at the time of disclosure(s) as defined in the relevant Information Sharing Agreement unless obliged under statute or regulation, or under the instructions of a court or as agreed elsewhere. Therefore, any further uses made of this data will not be lawful or covered by this ISA.

- 7.2 Restrictions may also apply to any further use of non-personal information, such as commercial sensitivity or prejudice to others caused by the information's release, and this should be considered when considering secondary use for non-personal information. If in doubt the information's original owner should be consulted.
- 7.3 Additional Statutory restrictions apply to the disclosure of certain information for example Criminal Records, HIV and AIDS, Assisted Conception and Abortion, Child Protection etc. Information about these will be included in the relevant ISA.

## 46. 8. Consent - Applies to Personal Data only

- 8.1 Consent is not the only means by which personal data can be disclosed. Under the Data Protection Act 2018 in order to disclose personal data at least one condition in Chapter 2 must be met. In order to disclose sensitive personal data at least one condition in both schedules two and three must be met.
- 8.2 Where a Partner Organisation has a statutory obligation to disclose personal data then the consent of the data subject is not required; but the data subject should be informed that such an obligation exists.
- 8.3 If a Partner Organisation decides not to disclose some or all of the personal data, the requesting authority must be informed. For example, the Partner Organisation may be relying on a lawful exemption from disclosure or on the inability to obtain consent from the data subject.
- 8.4 Consent has to be signified by some communication between the organisation and the Data Subject. If the Data Subject does not respond this cannot be assumed as implied consent. When using sensitive data, explicit consent must be obtained subject to any existing exemptions. In such cases the data subject's consent must be clear and cover items such as the specific details of processing, the data to be processed and the purpose for processing.
- 8.5 If consent is used as a form of justification for disclosure, the data subject must have the right to withdraw consent at any time.
- 8.6 Specific procedures will apply where the data subject is either not considered able to give informed consent itself because of either the data subject's age (Gillick Competency) or where the data subject has a condition which means the data subject does not have the capacity to give informed consent. In these circumstances the relevant policy of the Partner Organisation should be referred to.

#### 47. 9. INDEMNITY

9.1 Each partner organisation will keep each of the other partners fully indemnified against any and all costs, expenses and claims arising out of any breach of this agreement and

in particular, but without limitation, the unauthorised or unlawful access, loss, theft, use, destruction or disclosure by the offending partner or its sub-contractors, employees, agents or any other person within the control of the offending partner of any personal data obtained in connection with this agreement.

## 48. **10. SECURITY**

- 10.1 It is assumed that each Partner Organisation has achieved and/or observe to the standards for ISMS within the ISO 27001, the International Standard for Information Security Management, compliance or a similar level of compatible security. Partner Organisations should ensure that the minimum standards of security, that they require, are agreed with Partner Organisations with whom their information will be shared and included in the ISA. This should take account of the security classification of the information.
- 10.2 It is accepted that not all Partners will have security classification in place.
- 10.3 Each partner signing this protocol and any individual signing the confidentiality agreement, agrees to adhere to the agreed standards of security. If there is a security breach in which information received from another party under this ISA is compromised, the originator will be notified at the earliest opportunity via the post holder identified at 3.2 of the ISA, who must forward details to the Information Security Section.
- 10.4 Where a partner has regular, specific security requirements, for example a corporate policy, either these or, if available, a hypertext link to the protocol should be included. This should help to avoid reviewing standards agreed previously when each new ISA is set up.
- 10.5 Security requirements are included in the project Information Sharing Agreements.

## 49. **11. INFORMATION QUALITY**

- 11.1 Information quality needs to be of a standard fit for the purpose information is to be used for, including being complete, accurate and as up to date as required for the purposes for which it is being shared. Without this any decision made on the information may be flawed and inappropriate actions may result. Partner Organisations are expected to ensure that the Personal Data and Sensitive Personal Data that it holds is processed in accordance with DPA principles: this includes ensuring that the Data is accurate, complete and up-to-date and is not kept any longer than is necessary.
- 11.2 Where Partner Organisations share information under this Protocol it is expected that Partner Organisations will either have an Information Quality Strategy and the supporting processes and procedures in place or be formally working towards this.

- 11.3 All Partner Organisations are expected to give undertakings that information meets a reasonable quality level for the proposed purposes for which it is being shared and be able to evidence this.
- 11.4 It is expected that all partner organisations will always observe the project Information Quality Standard. In maintaining this standard, they will ensure the Information Quality Assurance project.
- 11.5 Poor quality data risks suspension of payment as the European Commission place high store on the quality of data. Both Selnet and the deliver partners have responsibility for delivering data according to the specifications. Information must be accurate, comparable and coherent.

## **50. 12.** TRAINING

- 12.1 All Partner Organisations staff processing information shared under this Protocol and its associated ISA are expected to be trained to a level that enables them to undertake their duties confidently, efficiently and lawfully. This is an obligation on each Partner Organisation and responsibility for it cannot be assigned to another organisation.
- 12.2 To minimise the costs associated with training and to ensure that all staff participating in activities based on information shared under a specific ISA it is strongly advised that partners collaborate in the development and delivery of training.
- 12.3 For the avoidance of doubt, where collaborative training is not adopted this should be stated in the ISA.

## 51. 13. INDIVIDUAL RESPONSIBILITIES

- 13.1 Every individual working for the organisations listed in this Partnership Agreement is personally responsible for the safekeeping of any information they obtain, handle, use and disclose.
- 13.2 Every individual should know how to obtain, use and share information they legitimately need to do their job.
- 13.3 Every individual has an obligation to request proof of identity, or takes steps to validate the authorisation of another before disclosing any information requested under this protocol and associated ISA's.
- Every individual should uphold the general principles of confidentiality, follow the guidelines set out in this Protocol and seek advice when necessary.
- 13.5 Every individual should be aware that any violation of privacy or breach of confidentiality is unlawful and a disciplinary matter that could lead to their dismissal.

Criminal proceedings might also be brought against that individual.

#### 52. **14. G**ENERAL PRINCIPLES

- 14.1 The principles outlined in this protocol are recommended good standards of practice or legal requirements that should be adhered to by all Partner Organisations.
- 14.2 This protocol sets the core standards applicable to all Partner Organisations and should form the basis of all Information Sharing Agreements established to secure the flow of personal information.
- 14.3 This protocol should be used in conjunction with local service level agreements, contracts or any other formal agreements that exist between the Partner Organisations.
- 14.4 All parties signed up to this protocol are responsible for ensuring that organisational measures are in place to protect the security and integrity of personal information and that their staff are properly trained to understand their responsibilities and comply with the law.
- 14.5 This protocol has been written to set out clear and consistent principles that satisfy the requirements of the law that all staff must follow when using and sharing personal information.
- 14.6 The specific purpose for use and sharing information will be defined in the Information Sharing Agreements that will be specific to the Partner Organisations sharing information.

## 53. **15. REVIEW ARRANGEMENTS**

- 15.1 This overarching agreement will be formally reviewed annually.
- Any of the signatories can request an extraordinary review at any time where a joint discussion or decision is necessary to address local service developments.

## Schedule 5

## **Transfers of Undertakings**

## **PART 1 – DEFINITIONS**

1. The following definitions and interpretations apply in this Schedule 5:

## 1.1. Definitions

Adherence Agreement	means an Adherence Agreement as defined in this agreement and also includes any other contract with a Provider for Services as part of the Age of Opportunity/Invest in Youth/Changing Futures project extension;
Affected Services	means the Services provided pursuant to the relevant Adherence Agreement where such provision forms part of the Age of Opportunity/Invest in Youth/Changing Futures project extension;
Data Protection Legislation	means the UK Data Protection Legislation and (for so long as and to the extent that the law of the EU has legal effect in the UK) the General Data Protection Regulation ((EU) 2016/679) and any other directly applicable EU regulation relating to data protection and privacy;
Direct Losses	means all damage, losses, liabilities, claims, actions, costs, expenses (including the cost of legal or professional services, legal costs being on an agent/client, client paying basis), proceedings, demands and charges whether arising under statute, contract or at common law;
Directive	means the Acquired Rights Directive (2001/23/EC);
Employees	means those employees and non-employees (such as volunteers) of the Outgoing Provider other than the Transferring Employees;
Employee Liability Information	means the information to be provided pursuant to Regulation 11 of the Regulations;
Incoming Provider	means each and every provider who shall provide any service equivalent to any of the Affected

	Services immediately after the expiry or earlier termination of the Outgoing Provider's Adherence Agreement;
GDPR	means the General Data Protection Regulation (EU) 2016/679;
National Minimum Wage Regulations	means the National Minimum Wage Regulations 1999 (SI1999/584)
Outgoing Provider	means each and every provider who shall provide any service equivalent to any of the Affected Services immediately before the commencement of the Incoming Provider's Adherence Agreement;
Provider	means the Delivery Partner or any other party delivering or contracted to deliver the Affected Services;
Regulations	means the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 (246/2006), and any predecessor regulations including the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 1981, and or any other regulations or other legislation amending or replacing them;
Relevant Transfer	means the transfer of the employment of a Transferring Employee from an Outgoing Provider to an Incoming Provider and/or Selnet in either case in accordance with the Regulations or otherwise;
Relevant Transfer Date	means the date on which a Relevant Transfer occurs;
Retendering Information	means full and accurate details regarding the identity, number, age, sex, length of service, job title, grade and terms and conditions of employment of and other matters affecting each of the Transferring Employees;
Transferring Employees	means those employees wholly or mainly engaged in the provision of the Affected Services immediately before the termination of the Outgoing Provider's Adherence Agreement and the commencement of any other contract to

	provide any or all of the Affected Services, whose employment transfers from the Outgoing Provider to any other Provider pursuant to the Regulations and excluding any who have objected to the transfer;
UK Data Protection Legislation	means any data protection legislation from time to time in force in the UK including the Data Protection Act 2018 or any successor legislation.
Working Time Regulations	means Working Time Regulations 1998 (SI 1998/1833).

## 1.2. Interpretation

For the avoidance of doubt in relation to this Schedule 5:

- (i) the status of a Provider as an Incoming Provider or Outgoing Provider will be assessed in relation to each Relevant Transfer having regard to the applicable facts and law at the relevant time;
- (ii) a Provider can be both an Incoming Provider and an Outgoing Provider during the course of this contract in relation to the commencement and termination of its Adherence Agreement;
- (iii) there may be one or more Outgoing Providers and Incoming Providers in relation to any Relevant Transfer;
- (iv) this Schedule 5 shall not apply to any transfer which occurs upon commencement of this contract or the first Age of Opportunity/Invest in Youth/Changing Futures project extension Adherence Agreement for any Affected Services and any such transfer will not be a Relevant Transfer.
- 1.3. Save as provided for above the provisions of this agreement relating to interpretation and definitions shall apply to this Schedule.

## PART 2 – RELEVANT TRANSFERS PURSUANT TO THE REGULATIONS

## 2. Where this Part applies:

- 2.1. The parties acknowledge that where and to the extent that the Regulations apply the employment of the Transferring Employees will transfer to from the Outgoing Provider to the Incoming Provider.
- 2.2. Notwithstanding this, the parties agree that whether the Regulations shall apply in respect of the provision of any service equivalent to the Affected Services shall be determined in accordance with the Regulations in force at the termination of

- this contract. The following provisions are without prejudice to such determination.
- 2.3. The Outgoing Provider shall provide the Employee Liability Information at such time or times as are required by the Regulations and shall warrant at the time of providing such Employee Liability Information that such Employee Liability Information will be updated to take account of any changes to such Employee Liability Information as is required by the Regulations.
- 2.4. The Outgoing Provider shall, or shall procure, that all wages, salaries, bonuses and other benefits of the Transferring Employees and all PAYE tax deductions, pension contributions and national insurance contributions relating thereto in respect of the employment of the Transferring Employees up to the Relevant Transfer Date are satisfied.
- 2.5. Once notice of termination has been served by either party, the Outgoing Provider agrees that they will not negotiate, offer, promise or agree to any future variation in any contract of employment of any one of the Transferring Employees and that they will not make any offers of employment or engagement to anybody that would become but is not already a Transferring Employee, or move workers from other parts of their business such that they become a Transferring Employee, without the prior written consent of the Incoming Provider, which shall not be unreasonably withheld (or delayed).
- 2.6. The Outgoing Provider shall, up to and including the Relevant Transfer Date, comply with all of its obligations and those of any of its predecessors (whether or not legally binding or in respect of which it would be expected to comply by any regulatory or other body to which it is subject) due to or in connection with the Transferring Employees or any body representing them (or any of the said obligations the Outgoing Provider would have had under or in connection with such contracts but for the Regulations).
- 2.7. The Outgoing Provider shall, and shall keep indemnified in full, Selnet and, at Selnet's request, any Incoming Provider against all Direct Losses arising from any claim by any party as a result of the Outgoing Provider failing to provide or to promptly provide Employee Liability Information or failing to provide or to promptly provide full Employee Liability Information or as a result of any material inaccuracy in or omission from the Employee Liability Information.
- 2.8. The Outgoing Provider will indemnify and keep indemnified the Incoming Provider and Selnet (to the extent that the Transferring Employees transfer to Selnet) against Direct Losses arising from any claims by or on behalf of any of the Transferring Employees, Employees, or their representatives arising from or in connection with their employment or its termination after the Relevant Transfer Date or arising from any action, omission, neglect or default of the Outgoing Provider, including but not limited to the Outgoing Provider's obligations under the Regulations, which occurred before or on the Relevant Transfer Date.

- 2.9. The Incoming Provider will indemnify and keep indemnified the Outgoing Provider and Selnet against Direct Losses arising from any claims by or on behalf of any of the Transferring Employees or their representatives arising from or in connection with their employment or its termination after the Relevant Transfer Date save where caused by the action, omission, neglect or default of the Outgoing Provider.
- 2.10. Not later than 2 working days after the Relevant Transfer Date, the Outgoing Provider shall deliver, or procure delivery, to the Incoming Provider or make available to the Incoming Provider all National Insurance and PAYE records fully completed in respect of the Transferring Employees and showing that payments are up to date, and all records required to be kept pursuant to the National Minimum Wage Regulations and Working Time Regulations, subject always to the Outgoing Provider's obligations under the Data Protection Legislation.
- 2.11. Without prejudice to the other provisions of this paragraph 2, the Outgoing Provider shall, at its own expense, give the Incoming Provider such assistance as the Incoming Provider may reasonably require to contest any demand by any Transferring Employee, Employee or their representatives resulting from or in connection with this agreement, subject always to the Outgoing Provider's obligations under the Data Protection Legislation.
- 2.12. The Outgoing Provider shall remain responsible for all the the Outgoing Provider's Employees on or after the Relevant Transfer Date and shall indemnify Selnet and any Incoming Provider against all Direct Losses incurred by Selnet or any Incoming Provider resulting from any claim whatsoever whether arising before on or after the Relevant Transfer Date, by or on behalf of, any of the Outgoing Provider's Employees.
- 2.13. If a contract of employment or engagement of any Employee, other than a Transferring Employee named in the Retendering Information, has effect as if originally made between the Incoming Provider (or Selnet) and that Employee as a result of the provisions of the Regulations or otherwise, the Incoming Partner (or Selnet) may terminate such contract or agreement without prejudice to the effect of the indemnity set out below.
- 2.14. Without prejudice to paragraph 2.13 in respect of Transferring Employees, the Outgoing Provider shall indemnify Selnet and any Incoming Provider against any claims and all Direct Losses incurred by the Incoming Provider or Selnet arising out of or on account of either the continuing employment or the termination of the employment of an Employee of the Outgoing Provider whose contract of employment transferred to the Incoming Provider or Selnet pursuant to the Regulations.
- 2.15. In the event of there being any collective agreement not disclosed to the Incoming Provider or Selnet which is alleged to have effect as if originally made between the Incoming Provider or Selnet and any person, any body or their representatives

as a result of the provisions of the Regulations or otherwise, the Incoming Provider or Selnet may terminate such agreement and the Outgoing Provider shall indemnify the Incoming Provider against all Direct Losses suffered or incurred by the Incoming Provider or Selnet arising out of or in connection with such termination.

## 3. Retendering Information

- 3.1. The Provider shall within the period of 12 months immediately preceding the termination of its Adherence Agreement or following receipt of notice effecting the termination of its Adherence Agreement:
  - (i) on receiving a request from Selnet provide the Retendering Information in respect of any Transferring Employee who it is expected, if they remain in the employment of the Provider until immediately before the termination of the contract, would be Transferring Employees;
  - (ii) provide the Retendering Information promptly and at no cost to Selnet;
  - (iii) notify Selnet forthwith in writing of any material changes to the Retendering Information promptly as and when such changes arise;
  - (iv) be precluded from making any material increase or decrease in the numbers of Transferring Employees other than in the ordinary course of business and with Selnet's prior written consent (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed);
  - (v) be precluded from making any increase in the remuneration or other change in the terms and conditions of the Transferring Employees other than in the ordinary course of business and with Selnet's prior written consent (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed); and
  - (vi) be precluded from transferring any of the Transferring Employees to another part of its business or moving other employees from elsewhere in its or their business who have not previously been employed or engaged in providing the Affected Services, to provide the Affected Services, save with Selnet's prior written consent (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed).
  - (vii) Without prejudice to paragraph (i) the Outgoing Provider shall, and shall keep indemnified in full, Selnet against all Direct Losses arising from any claim by any party as a result of the Outgoing Provider failing to provide or promptly to provide Selnet with any Retendering Information or to provide full Retendering Information or as a result of any material inaccuracy in or omission from the Retendering Information.

## PART 3: APPORTIONMENT OF COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH REDUNDANCY

## 4. Where this Part applies:

4.1. Without prejudice to the other Parts of this Schedule above, each Provider confirms its awareness of:

- (i) the fixed term nature of this agreement and the Provider's Adherence Agreement and
- (ii) the potential for Transferring Employees to be redundant at the termination of this agreement or the Provider's Adherence Agreement and/or successor providers' equivalent agreements and
- (iii) the terms of this agreement relating to the funding of redundancy and associated costs of the termination of employment being the responsibility of the relevant Provider and not to be discharged from project-specific funding

and agrees to contribute to the costs of the termination of any Transferring Employee's employment by reason of redundancy, where the Transferring Employee's employment has transferred to an Incoming Provider or Selnet pursuant to the Regulations on the Relevant Transfer Date and the Transferring Employee is made redundant within 12 weeks of the end of this agreement or the final Adherence Agreement of an Incoming Provider or equivalent agreement of a successor provider on the following proportionate basis

$$C = R \times \left(\frac{S}{F}\right)$$

Where:

- C is the relevant Provider's contribution;
- R is the total cost of the Transferring Employee's contractual notice entitlement (or applicable statutory notice entitlement where there is no contractual entitlement), the provision of (or compensation in respect of any loss of) any contractual benefits, Statutory Redundancy Pay, and any contractual redundancy pay (including all PAYE, NIC and employer pension contributions) calculated as at the Relevant Transfer Date;
- F is the total funding attributable to the Affected Services in the relevant part of the Age of Opportunity/Invest in Youth/Changing Futures project extension; and
- S is the total amount of F received or to be received by the relevant Provider.
- 4.2. Each Provider agrees that its contribution under this paragraph may be payable to Selnet, the Incoming Provider or a successor Provider to the Incoming Provider.
- 4.3. Selnet shall be entitled to assign the benefit of this Part 4 to any Incoming Provider or successor Provider of the relevant Affected Services.
- 4.4. In any event it is the intention of the Providers and Selnet that pursuant to the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999, the provisions of this part shall be enforceable by Outgoing Providers, Incoming Providers and successor Providers.

## Schedule 6 Performance Improvement Plan

# **Performance Improvement Plan for:**

Description of the underperformance:	
Aim of the Performance Improvement Plan:	
Plan Start Date:	
Plan End Date:	

	Success Criteria	Additional Support Required	Review Schedule	<b>Objective Outcome</b>
	How will you know when the expected	What additional support does the	When will progress against	When will the final review of
	project requirements have improved	partner require in order that they are	the improvement objective	the plan be undertaken and
	performance?	able to achieve the project	be reviewed? How will	by whom? What is the final
		requirements?	evidence of progress be	outcome? What action will
			collected? Who will review	be taken if project
			progress?	requirements are not met?
1.				
2.				
3.				

4.			
5.			
6.			
Partner signature:	Date:	resume as forecast.  Failure to meet plan object  Extension of the PIP (devidence)  Scaling down project ta	will be informed in writing of Plan objectives and delivery to ives may result in: ependent on mitigating rgets and funding allocation
		3. Termination of the particular giving 30 days written	ners Adherence Agreement by en notice

# ${\bf EXECUTION\ PAGES-(Selnet\ ONLY)}$

Signed by a Director	
for and on behalf of <b>SELNET</b>	
<b>LIMITED</b>	Sign:
	 D: .NI
	Print Name

## **EXECUTION PAGES – (delivery Partner)**

Signed by a Director/ duly authorised person for and on behalf of	Partner and Company name
	Sign
	Print Name
	Position

## **ANNEXURE 1**

## THE BID

See link for a Project Overview and full list of Delivery Partners for Age of Opportunity Project: <a href="https://selnet-uk.com/age-of-opportunity/">https://selnet-uk.com/age-of-opportunity/</a>

For Bid details see www.bbolancs.org